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19 January 2023  

Dear 
 
FOI 22/1113 
 
Thank you for your email of 14 November 2022 where you requested:  
 
a) how many Coroners inquests have found the Covid vaccines responsible for the death 
b) of a), for how many does MHRA hold a Yellow Card (YC) report  
c) how many post mortems have been done where MHRA holds a YC report relating to the 
Covid vaccines 
d) provide reference numbers of the Regulation 28 reports (Coroners report to prevent future 
deaths) relating to the Covid vaccinations held by MHRA, split between i) where MHRA was 
an addressee of the Reg 28 report and ii) where MHRA received a copy from a 3rd party. 
e) how many YC reports relating to the Covid vaccinations does MHRA hold where there is 
also a claim under the Vaccine Damage Payment Scheme 
 

Please accept our apologies for the delay in responding to your request.  

Having considered your request, I can confirm that the MHRA does not hold the information 
requested under a) to d). It may be that some of the information you seek is held by other 
organisations. Please find further explanation for each point. 

For a) and b) the MHRA does not hold information on Coroner’s Inquests unless they are reported 
to us, which is not always the case. Therefore we are not able to provide a number for how many 
Inquests found a COVID-19 vaccine responsible for a death.  

For c) the MHRA also does not hold information on post mortems unless they are provided in 
relation to a Yellow Card report. The MHRA follows up Yellow Card reports with a fatal outcome to 
ask for details where a post mortem has been conducted. If you would like to know how many 
Yellow Card reports concerning COVID-19 vaccines mention a post mortem was conducted we may 
be able to provide a number for each vaccine. Please let us know whether you would be interested 
in this.  

For d) The MHRA has not received any Regulation 28 reports concerning COVID-19 vaccines. 
Details of Regulation 28 reports can be found here: Reports to Prevent Future Deaths - Courts and 
Tribunals Judiciary 

http://www.gov.uk/mhra
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.judiciary.uk%2Fcourts-and-tribunals%2Fcoroners-courts%2Freports-to-prevent-future-deaths%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cvigilanceservice%40mhra.gov.uk%7C7060366b2ef8423fc16808dabbe36e48%7Ce527ea5c62584cd2a27f8bd237ec4c26%7C0%7C0%7C638028882718134949%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=A4Y8iX1a2MM3I29p2Yxb7%2BagmGiiBEWVvsWickgTaAs%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.judiciary.uk%2Fcourts-and-tribunals%2Fcoroners-courts%2Freports-to-prevent-future-deaths%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cvigilanceservice%40mhra.gov.uk%7C7060366b2ef8423fc16808dabbe36e48%7Ce527ea5c62584cd2a27f8bd237ec4c26%7C0%7C0%7C638028882718134949%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=A4Y8iX1a2MM3I29p2Yxb7%2BagmGiiBEWVvsWickgTaAs%3D&reserved=0


 

 

For e), the MHRA would only hold the requested information if it was provided voluntarily by the 
reporter.  The MHRA would not request this information as part of our follow up processes. As this 
is not required information for a Yellow Card to be deemed valid, there is no structured data field to 
indicate whether a claim under VDPS exists in relation to that Yellow Card report. Therefore to 
determine whether any Yellow Card reports concerning a COVID-19 vaccine as a suspected drug 
concern an individual who has made a claim under the VDPS scheme a manual search of each 

report would need to be undertaken. Due to the total number of Yellow Card reports we have 
received relating to the COVID-19 vaccines this is unfortunately not feasible to do. 

Section 12 of the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) makes provision for public authorities to refuse 
requests for information where the cost of dealing with them would exceed the appropriate limit, 
which for central government is set at £600. This represents the estimated cost of one person 
spending 24 working hours in determining whether the department holds the information, locating, 
retrieving and extracting the information. Based on the large number of ADR reports received since 
the beginning of the COVID-19 vaccination programme, and how this data would be extracted and 
presented, we estimate that it will take in excess of 24 working hours to respond to this request. 

If you are dissatisfied with the handling of your request, you have the right to ask for an internal 
review. Internal review requests should be submitted within two months of the date of this response; 
and can be addressed to this email address. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 
FOI Team, 
 
The MHRA information supplied in response to your request is subject to Crown copyright. The 
FOIA only entitles you to access to MHRA information.  
 
For information on the reproduction or re-use of MHRA information, please visit 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reproduce-or-re-use-mhra-information/reproduce-or-re-
use-mhra-information 
 
If you have a query about this email, please contact us. If you are unhappy with our decision, you 
may ask for it to be reviewed. That review will be undertaken by a senior member of the agency who 
has not previously been involved in your request. If you wish to pursue that option, please write to 
the Communications Directorate, 4-T, Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory Agency (via 
this email address). After that, if you remain dissatisfied, you may ask the Information Commissioner 
at: 
 
The Information Commissioner’s Office  
Wycliffe House   
Water Lane  
Wilmslow  
Cheshire  
SK9 5AF  
 
Copyright notice  
The information supplied in response to your request is the copyright of MHRA and/or a third party 
or parties and has been supplied for your personal use only. You may not sell, resell or otherwise 
use any information provided without prior agreement from the copyright holder 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reproduce-or-re-use-mhra-information/reproduce-or-re-use-mhra-information
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reproduce-or-re-use-mhra-information/reproduce-or-re-use-mhra-information


 

 

 
 




